1	WAGANAKISING ODAWAK STATUTE #
2	GAMING REGULATORY STATUTE
3	
4	
5	
6	SECTION I. PURPOSE
7	
8	The purpose of this Statute is for the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians, empowered
9	by the Tribal Constitution, to enact this Statue to govern and regulate the operation of class II
10	and/or class III gaming operations on the Tribe's Indian lands in order to promote economic
11	development, self-sufficiency and sovereignty; to shield the operation of gaming from
12	organized crime and other corrupting influences; and to ensure that gaming is conducted fairly
13	and honestly by both the operator and players. This Statute rescinds and replaces the Gaming
14	Regulatory Statute, Waganakising Odawak Statue 2011-005, Waganakising Odawak Statute
15	2005-06, and Waganakising Odawak Statute 2010-012.
16	
17	
18	SECTION II. APPLICABILITY
19	
20	Unless specifically indicated otherwise, all provisions of this ordinance shall apply to class II
21	and/or class III gaming on the Tribe's Indian lands.
22	
23	
24	SECTION III. DEFINITIONS
25	
26	Unless a different meaning is clearly indicated in this Statute, the terms used herein shall have
27	the same meaning as defined in the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA) as currently codified
28	at, 25 U.S.C. § 2701 et seq., and its regulations, 25 C.F.R. § 500 et seq, or as amended.
29	Throughout this Statute, citations to Tribal or Federal statutes and regulations include successor
30	statutes and regulations if such future changes do not alter the intent of this Statute.
31	
32	A. "Gaming Authority" means the subordinate entity of the Tribe that reports to Tribal
33	Council in accordance with Waganakising Odawak Statute 2018-016, or as amended, or any Page 1 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima

1	successor entity created by Tribal Statute to carry out non-regulatory aspects of the Tribe's							
2	gaming operation.							
3								
4	В.	"Commission" means the Gaming Regulatory Commission established to by this statute.						
5 6	C.	"Commissioner" means a Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians Gaming						
7	Regula	atory Commissioner.						
8								
9	D.	"Complimentary Items" means a service or item provided at no cost, or at a reduced						
10	cost, to	o a customer, but does not include discounts offered equally to all Tribal Citizens, tribal						
11	emplo	yees, or attendees at a conference or training.						
12								
13	E.	"Department" means the Gaming Regulatory Department.						
14								
15	F.	"Director" means the Gaming Regulatory Department Director.						
16								
17	G.	"Immediate Family Member" means family relations as defined in Waganakising						
18	Odawa	ak Statute WOS 2006-007, Commissions, Boards and Committees Statute, or as amended.						
19								
20	H.	"Facility License" means a separate license issued by the Department to each place,						
21	facility or location on Indian lands where the Tribe elects to allow class II or III gaming;							
22								
23	I.	"Gaming Operation" means each economic entity that is licensed by the Department,						
24	operate	es the games, receives the revenues, issues the prizes, and pays the expenses. A gaming						
25	operati	ion may be operated by the Tribe directly; by a management contractor; or, under certain						
26	conditi	ions, by another person or entity.						
27								
28	J.	"Gaming" or "Gambling" means Class II or III gaming activity conducted by the						
29	Gamin	g Enterprise.						
30								
31	K.	"Key Employee" means:						
32								
33		1. A person who performs one or more of the following functions:						
	Page 2 d	of 30. Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kingina						

1						
2			a.	Bingo caller		
3			b.	Counting room supe	rvisor	
4			c.	Chief of security		
5			d.	Custodian of gaming	g supplies or cas	h
6			e.	Floor manager		
7			f.	Pit boss		
8			g.	Dealer		
9			h.	Croupier		
10			i.	Approver of credit		
11			j.	Custodian of gambli	ng devices inclu	ding persons with access to cash and
12			accou	nting records within s	uch devices;	
13			k.	Custodians of confid	lential or proprie	etary information or records
14						
15		2.	If not	otherwise included, an	ny other person	whose total cash compensation is in
16		exces	s of \$50	),000 per year.		
17						
18		3.	If not	otherwise included, th	e four most high	nly compensated persons in the
19		gamiı	ng opera	ation.		
20						
21	L.	"Net	Revenu	es" means gross gamir	ng revenues of th	ne Little Traverse Bay Bands of
22	Odaw	a India	ns gami	ng operation less:		
23						
24		1.	Amou	ants paid out as, or paid	d for, prizes.	
25						
26		2.	Total	gaming-related operat	ing expenses, in	cluding all those expenses of the
27		gamiı	ng opera	ation commonly know	n as operating ex	xpenses and non-operating expenses
28		consi	stent wi	th professional accoun	iting pronouncer	ments, excluding management fees.
29						
30	M.	"Prin	nary Ma	nagement Official" me	eans:	
31						
32		1.	The p	erson(s) having manag	gement responsil	bility for a management contract.
33						
	Page 3	of 30 C	Gaming R	egulatory Statute		Secretary Kiogima

1	2.	Any person who has authority.
2		
3		<b>a.</b> To hire and fire employees.
4		<b>b.</b> To set up working policy for the gaming operation.
5		<b>c.</b> The chief financial officer or other person(s) who has financial
6		management responsibility.
7		<b>d.</b> Any other person designated by the Gaming Regulatory Department
8		based on level of signing authority or job position responsibilities.
9		
10	N. "Tri	bal Chair" and "Vice Chair" means the Executive created under Article VIII of the
11	LTBB Cons	stitution.
12		
13	<b>0.</b> "Tri	bal Council" means the Legislative body of the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa
14	Indians (LT	TBB).
15		
16	P. "Tri	bal Court" means the LTBB Court created under Article IX of the LTBB
17	Constitution	n <b>.</b>
18		
19	<b>Q.</b> "Tri	bal lands" means all lands within the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians
20	jurisdiction	al reservation boundaries, and any lands title to which are held in trust by the United
21	States for th	ne benefit of the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians.
22		
23	R. "Tri	bal-State Compact" means an agreement between Little Traverse Bay Bands of
24	Odawa Indi	ans and the State of Michigan regarding class III gaming under federal regulations.
25		
26	<b>S.</b> "Tri	be" or "LTBB" means the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians which as
27	reaffirmed i	in Public Law 103-324 is recognized as eligible by the Secretary of the Interior for
28	the special	programs and services provided by the United States to Indians because of their
29	status as a f	ederally recognized tribe, and are recognized as possessing powers of self-
30	governmen	t.
31		
32		
33	SECTION	IV. GAMING AUTHORIZED
	D 4 620	

1				
2	The following terms shall have the same meaning and effect as those same terms as defined in			
3	the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act ("IGRA"), 25 U.S.C. §§ 2701 et seq., and the National			
4	India	n Gami	ng Commission ("NIGC") regulations, 25 C.F.R. §§ 500 et seq., if they are defined	
5	in IG	RA and	the NIGC's regulations.	
6				
7	A.	Class	s I gaming.	
8				
9		1.	Social games played solely for prizes of minimal value; or	
10				
11		2.	Traditional forms of Indian gaming when played by individuals in	
12		conn	ection with tribal ceremonies or celebrations.	
13				
14	В.	Class	s II gaming.	
15				
16		1.	Bingo or lotto (whether or not electronic, computer or other technologic aids are	
17		used)	) when players:	
18				
19			<b>a.</b> Play for prizes with cards bearing numbers or other designations;	
20			<b>b.</b> Cover numbers or designations when objects, similarly numbered or	
21			designated, are drawn or electronically determined; and	
22			<b>c.</b> Win the game by being the first person to cover a designated pattern on	
23			such cards;	
24				
25		2.	Pull-tabs, punch boards, tip jars, instant bingo and other games similar to	
26		bingo	o, if played in the same location as bingo or lotto;	
27				
28		3.	Non-banking card games that:	
29				
30			<b>a.</b> State law explicitly authorizes, or does not explicitly prohibit, and are	
31			played legally anywhere in the state; and	
32			<b>b.</b> Players play in conformity with state laws and regulations concerning	
33	ъ -		hours, periods of operation, and limitations on wagers and pot sizes;	
	Page 5	of 30 (	Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima	

1			
2		4.	Card games played in the states of Michigan, North Dakota, South Dakota or
3		Washi	ngton, if:
4			
5			<b>a.</b> A tribe actually operates the same card games as played on or before
6			May 1, 1988, as determined by the NIGC Chair; and
7			<b>b.</b> The pot and wager limits remain the same as on or before May 1, 1988,
8			as determined by the NIGC Chair;
9			
10		5.	Individually owned class II gaming operations –
11			
12			<b>a.</b> That were operating on September 1, 1986;
13			<b>b.</b> That meet the requirements of 25 U.S.C. § 2710(b)(4)(B);
14			<b>c.</b> Where the nature and scope of the game remains as it was on
15			October 17, 1988; and
16			<b>d.</b> Where the ownership interest or interests are the same as on October
17			17, 1988.
18			
19	C.	Class	III gaming. All forms of gaming that are not class I or class II gaming,
20	includi	ing, but	not limited to:
21			
22		1.	Any house banking game, including but not limited to –
23			
24			a. Card games such as baccarat, chemin de fer, blackjack (21), and pai gow
25			(if played as house-banking games); and
26			<b>b.</b> Casino games such as roulette, craps, and keno;
27			
28		2.	Any slot machines, as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 1711(a)(1), and electronic or
29		electro	omechanical facsimiles of any game of chance;
30			
31		3.	Any sports betting and pari-mutuel wagering, including but not limited to,
32		wager	ing on horse racing, dog racing or jai alai; or
33			

			22 0 2 to 10 posted of 10 (1)
1			
2		4.	Lotteries.
3			
4			
5	SECT	CION '	V. OWNERSHIP OF GAMING
6			
7	The L	ittle T	raverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians shall have the sole proprietary interest in and
8	respo	nsibilit	by for the conduct of any gaming facilities and/or enterprise operation authorized by
9	this S	tatute.	
10			
11	A.	No p	erson or entity, other than the Tribe, shall conduct gaming without
12	obtair	ning a l	license from the Tribal Regulatory Department.
13			
14	В.	The '	Tribal Regulatory Department may issue a license for individually-owned
15	gamir	ng so lo	ong as:
16			
17		1.	The individually owned gaming operation is licensed and regulated
18		pursi	uant to this Statute;
19			
20		2.	The income to the Tribe from an individually owned gaming operation is
21		used	only for the purposes listed in this Statute;
22			
23		3.	Not less than sixty (60) percent of the net revenues of the individually-
24		owne	ed gaming operation is income to the Tribe;
25			
26		4.	The owner of the individually owned gaming pays an annual assessment to
27		NIG	C;
28			
29		5.	The Tribal Gaming Department applies licensing standards that are at least as
30		restri	ictive as those established by State law governing similar gaming;
31		6.	The Tribal Gaming Department determines that the owner of the individually
32		owne	ed gaming would be eligible to receive a State license to conduct the same activity
33	D =		in the jurisdiction of the surrounding State.
	Page 7	ot 30	Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima

1			
2			
3	SECT	ION VI.	USE OF GAMING REVENUE
4			
5	<b>A.</b>	Net reve	enues from gaming shall be used only for the following purposes:
6			
7		1.	to fund tribal government operations and programs.
8			
9		2.	to provide for the general welfare of the Tribe and its Citizens.
10			
11		3.	to promote Tribal economic development.
12			
13		4.	to donate to charitable organizations.
14			
15		5.	to help fund operations of local government agencies.
16			
17			
18	SECT	ION VI	I. PER CAPITA PAYMENTS
19		NT - 4	
20	<b>A.</b>		evenues from any [class II and/or class III] gaming activities conducted or
<ul><li>21</li><li>22</li></ul>	ncense	ed by the	Tribe may be used to make per capita payments to Tribal members if:
23		1.	The Tribe has prepared a plan to allocate revenues to one or more of the five
23 24			the Tribe has prepared a plan to anocate revenues to one of more of the five shorized by Section V of this Statute;
25		uses aut	morized by Section V of this Statute,
26		2.	The plan is approved by the Secretary of the Interior as adequate,
27			arly with respect to the uses described in sections $V(A)(1)$ and $V(A)(3)$
28		of this S	-
29		or tills t	rature,
30			
31		3.	The interests of minors and other legally incompetent persons who are entitled to
32			any of the per capita payments are protected and preserved, and the per capita
33			ts are disbursed to the parents or legal guardian of such minors or legal

	LEG-243 1e-posted 03/30/19	
1	incompetents in such amounts as may be necessary for the health, education, or welfa	are
2	of the minor or other legally incompetent person; and	
3		
4	4. The per capita payments are subject to Federal taxation and the Tribe	
5	notifies its members of such tax liability when payments are made.	
6		
7		
8	SECTION VIII. GAMING REGULATORY COMMISSION	
9		
10	<b>A.</b> The Commission shall consist of at least three (3) but not more than five (5) Tribal	
11	Citizens. There shall be among them a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary and	
12	Treasurer, provided the Secretary and Treasurer may be combined into one position.	
13		
14	<b>B.</b> The Tribe recognizes the importance of an independent Commission in maintaining a	ì
15	well-regulated gaming operation. To avoid potential conflicts of interest between the operation	ion
16	and regulation of the gaming facility, the Tribe hereby finds that, at a minimum:	
17		
18	1. No member of the Tribal Council may serve on the Commission.	
19		
20	2. No Gaming Authority member may serve on the Commission.	
21		
22	3. No Tribal Citizen directly related to or living with any Gaming Authority	
23	member may serve on the Commission.	
24		
25	4. Members of the Commission and Gaming Authority are prohibited from	
26	gambling in the facility.	
27		
28	5. The following persons are also ineligible to serve on the Commission: employ	yees
29	of the gaming operation, while serving as such; gaming contractors (including any	
30	principal of a management or other contracting company); persons directly related to	or
31	sharing a residence with any of the above.	
32		
33	C. The members of the Commission shall be appointed by the Tribal Council as follows	:
	Page 9 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima	

4	
ı	

**1.** Composition of the Commission. The Commission shall consist of three (3) to five (5) Tribal Citizens appointed by the Tribal Council and shall be licensed as primary management officials.

2. Term. Members of the Commission shall be appointed to serve for three (3) year terms. Terms shall be staggered so no more than two terms start in any one year. Members may be reappointed for additional terms without limitation.

3. Subject to the availability of funding and a budget approved by the Tribal Council, members of the Commission may receive a stipend, mileage and expense reimbursement in accordance with a stipend policy adopted by the Tribal Council.

**4.** Future Appointments and oath of office shall be conducted in accordance with the Commissions, Committees and Boards Statute, WOS 2002-05, or such successor statute as Tribal Council may enact.

**D.** Removal. Members of the Commission can only be removed in accordance with standards and procedures set out in the Waganakising Odawak Statute 2016-001 Removal of Commissioners Statute, or such successor statute as the Tribal Council may enact.

**E.** A majority of the Commission shall constitute a quorum. The concurrence of a majority of the members appointed to the Commission shall be required for any final determination by the Commission. The Commission may act in its official capacity even if there are vacancies on the Commission.

F. The Commission shall keep a written record of all its regularly scheduled, special, and emergency meetings, and licensing hearings and meetings.

**G.** Hold hearings on patron and/or employee complaints, in compliance with procedures established in this Statute and other Tribal gaming regulations.

**H.** Promulgate and issue regulations necessary to comply with the Tribal Minimum Internal

	LEG-243 Te-posted 03/30/19
1	Control Standards (TMICS) and the NIGC Minimum Internal Control Standards (MICS).
2	
3	I. Review and approve gaming operation policies and procedures for compliance with
4	Tribal Minimum Internal Control Standards (TMICS).
5	
6	<b>J.</b> Promulgate and issue regulations on the levying of fees associated with gaming license
7	applications.
8	
9	<b>K.</b> Promulgate and issue regulations on suspension or revocation of gaming licenses for
10	violations of the gaming Statute, or any other Tribal, Federal, or State, if applicable, gaming
11	regulations.
12	
13	L. Adopt a schedule of fines and/or forfeitures as a recommendation that may be imposed
14	by the Court upon the receipt of an admission of guilt or plea of no contest for violations
15	committed. This schedule shall not apply as to penalties assessed by the court after adjudicating
16	a violation where the defendant has entered a plea of not guilty.
17	
18	<b>M.</b> All regulations promulgated under this Statute shall be submitted to Tribal Council for
19	approval.
20	
21	
22	SECTION IX. GAMING REGULATORY DEPARTMENT
23	
24	<b>A.</b> The Tribe hereby establishes a Gaming Regulatory Department as an Executive
25	Department whose duty is to regulate tribal gaming operations. The purpose of the Department
26	is to ensure compliance with Tribal, Federal, and, if applicable, State laws and regulations. The
27	Department will serve as the licensing authority for the gaming operation and individuals
28	employed in the gaming operation and will administer background investigations as part of the
29	licensing process. The Department will monitor compliance with the internal control standards
30	for the gaming operation and track revenues. In order to carry out its regulatory duties, the
31	Department shall have unrestricted access to all areas of the gaming operation and to all records
32	The Department shall have authority to take enforcement actions, including suspension or
33	revocation of an individual gaming license when appropriate.  Page 11 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima

1			
2	B.	The	Department shall:
3		1	
4		1.	Conduct or cause background investigations to be conducted on primary
5		man	agement officials, key employees, and gaming related vendors.
6		2	
7		2.	Review and approve all investigative work conducted.
8		2	
9		3.	Report results of background investigations to the National Indian Gaming
10		Com	nmission.
11			
12		4.	Obtain and process fingerprints, or utilize the Tribal Law Enforcement agency to
13		obta	in and process fingerprints.
14		_	
15		<b>5.</b>	Make suitability determinations, which shall be signed by the Director when the
16		ncen	ase is approved.
17			Issue coming licenses to management officials and applicates of the appetion
18		6.	Issue gaming licenses to management officials and employees of the operation,
19		cons	istent with the suitability determination.
20		7	Inspect assuming and manifestall coming activities and have immediate access to
21		7.	Inspect, examine and monitor all gaming activities, and have immediate access to
22			ew, inspect, examine, photocopy and audit all gaming related records of the gaming blishment.
23 24		estat	onsiment.
24 25		8.	Ensure compliance with all Tribal, State, and Federal laws, rules, and regulations
25 26			rding Indian gaming.
20 27		regai	rung muan gaming.
28		9.	Investigate any suspicion of wrongdoing associated with any gaming activities,
28 29			report any potential criminal violations to Tribal Law Enforcement.
30		and	report any potential eliminal violations to Tribal Law Emolecment.
31		11.	Comply with any and all reporting requirements under the IGRA, Tribal-State
32			pact to which the Tribe is a party, and any other applicable law.
33		COIII	pact to which the 1110c is a party, and any other applicable law.
, ,			

			LEG-243 1e-posted 03/30/19
1	12.	Issue citations for violations	of the gaming Statute, or any other Tribal, Federal,
2	or St	ate, if applicable, gaming regula	tions.
3			
4	13.	Perform such other duties the	Department deems appropriate for the proper
5	regu	lation of the gaming operation.	
6			
7	14.	The Department shall be auth	orized to employ such staff and/or consultants as
8	reaso	onably may be required to fulfill	its responsibilities under this Statute subject to
9	perso	onnel policies approved by Triba	ıl Council.
10			
11	C. The	Department shall ensure that all	records and information obtained as a result of an
12	employee ba	ackground investigation shall rer	main confidential and shall not be disclosed to
13	persons who	are not directly involved in the	licensing process.
14			
15	1.	Information obtained during	the course of an employee background investigation
16	may	be disclosed to members of mar	nagement, human resource personnel or others
17	empl	loyed by the gaming operation o	n a need-to-know basis for actions to be taken in
18	their	official capacity. This informati	on must be public record and shall not include
19	infor	mation from Federal Bureau of	Investigation (FBI) records, Law Enforcement
20	Info	mation Network (LEIN) records	s, or disclose individuals interviewed during the
21	back	ground investigation.	
22			
23	2.	This Section does not apply t	o requests for such information or records from any
24	Triba	al, Federal or State law enforcen	nent or regulatory agency, or for the use of such
25	infor	mation or records by the Depart	ment in the performance of their official duties to
26	the e	extent permitted under applicable	e law.
27			
28			
29	SECTION	X. GAMING PROHIBITIONS	3
30			
31	<b>A.</b> No <b>C</b>	Gaming Regulatory Department	employee, Gaming Regulatory Commission
32	member, or	Gaming Authority member shall	l be permitted to participate as a player in any game
33	operated wit	thin the Facility.	
	Page 13 of 30	Gaming Regulatory Statute	Secretary Kiogima

ı	

- 2 **B.** With Tribal Council approval the following may participate as a player in any game
- 3 operation within the gaming facility: enterprise employees, members of Tribal Council, Tribal
- 4 Chair, Vice-Chair and members of the Judiciary. If the player is licensed by the Department,
- 5 then the license must be assessable for review upon request by the Department, management or
- 6 security or other such designated individuals. Tribal Council may place limits or restrictions on
- 7 the players by approved Regulations.

8

- 9 **C.** Gaming Regulatory employees shall be barred from participating as a player in any game operated within the facility for a period of one (1) year after their employment terminates unless waiver is approved by the Commission.
- 12
- 13 **D.** Unless a different age is set by State Compact, no individual under nineteen (19) years
- of age may play any game in the Enterprise, nor shall any such person be allowed to loiter or
- remain in the immediate area in which any such game is being played, provided that individual
- is not an employee of the enterprise.

17

- 18 **E.** No credit shall be extended by the Enterprise to any player. This prohibition shall not be
- 19 construed, however, to prevent players or customers from utilizing bank cards, credit cards, and
- other forms of personal credit when the credit is guaranteed or extended by an independent
- 21 financial institution.

2223

### SECTION XI. ETHICS

25

24

- 26 The Tribe recognizes that the duties of the Department and Commission include making
- important decisions on highly sensitive issues. As such, the Tribe has determined that the
- 28 Department and Commission shall be held to high ethical standards and shall adhere to the
- 29 Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians Constitutionally Mandated Rules of Conduct
- 30 for All Levels of Tribal Government that are approved by Tribal Council and any other
- 31 subsequent Rules, as may apply.

32

33

#### 1 **SECTION XII.** COMPLIMENTARY ITEMS FROM THE GAMING 2 **ENTERPRISE** 3 4 A. The use of complimentary items shall be governed by regulations established by the 5 Commission, which shall be in accord with the NIGC MICS, found at 25 C.F.R. § 542.17. 6 7 В. Employee, Primary Management Official, Tribal Council member, Tribal Chairperson, 8 Vice-Chairperson, member of the Tribal Judiciary, member of the Gaming Authority or the 9 Regulatory Commission, shall be authorized to receive complimentary items from the Tribe's 10 gaming enterprise only if it is received as a member of the general public or as a Tribal Citizen. 11 No gaming employee, Primary Management Official, Tribal Council member, Tribal 12 Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, or member of the Tribal Judiciary shall receive any items 13 associated with promotions, incentives and awards related to gaming activity. 14 15 **SECTION XIII.** 16 AUDIT 17 18 Annual Audit. The Tribe shall cause to be conducted independent audits of gaming Α. 19 operations annually and shall submit the results of those audits to the NIGC. The Tribal Council 20 shall appoint an independent auditor to conduct the annual financial statement audit and 21 minimum internal control testing as required by the LTBB Gaming Regulatory Commission 22 and, in addition to the NIGC, Tribal Council shall receive a copy of the annual audit. 23 24 В. Internal Audit. The Department may employ personnel to conduct the compliance 25 function (internal audit) or the Department may engage an independent audit firm with the 26 approval of the Tribal Council. 27 28 C. All gaming related contracts that result in the purchase of supplies, services, or 29 concessions in excess of \$25,000.00 annually, shall be specifically included within the scope of 30 the audit that is described in subsection A. above, except contracts for professional legal, 31 financial and accounting services. 32 33

Page 15 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute

Secretary Kiogima

1	SECTION XIV. ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY
2	
3	Class II and Class III gaming facilities shall be constructed, maintained and operated in a
4	manner that adequately protects the environment and the public health and safety. The Tribal
5	Council may designate persons or entities other than the Department to ensure compliance with
6	non-gaming health and safety standards such as building codes, fire safety, etc.
7	
8	
9	SECTION XV. PATRON DISPUTE RESOLUTION
10	
11	Patrons who have gaming related complaints against the gaming establishment, a gaming
12	employee, or a management contractor may file a petition for relief with the Commission and
13	the complaint shall be resolved in accordance with procedures adopted by the Commission.
14	
15	
16	SECTION XVI. LICENSE APPLICATION FORMS
17	
18	<b>A.</b> The following notice shall be placed on the Department's license application form for a
19	key employee or a primary management official before it is filled out by an applicant:
20	
21	1. In compliance with the Privacy Act of 1974, the following information is
22	provided: Solicitation of the information on this form is authorized by 25 U.S.C. §§
23	2701 et seq. The purpose of the requested information is to determine the eligibility of
24	individuals to be granted a gaming license. The information will be used by the Tribal
25	gaming regulatory authorities and by the National Indian Gaming Commission
26	members and staff who have need for the information in the performance of their

official duties. The information may be disclosed by the Department or the NIGC to

agencies when relevant to civil, criminal or regulatory investigations or prosecutions or

when pursuant to a requirement by a Department or the NIGC in connection with the

associated with a tribe or a gaming operation. Failure to consent to the disclosures

issuance, denial, or revocation of a gaming license, or investigations of activities while

appropriate Federal, Tribal, State, local or foreign law enforcement and regulatory

27

28

29

30

31

32

	LEG-245 re-posted 05/30/19
1	indicated in this notice will result in a Department being unable to license you for a
2	primary management official or key employee position.
3	
4	2. The disclosure of your Social Security Number (SSN) is voluntary.
5	However, failure to supply a SSN may result in errors in processing your
6	application.
7	
8	<b>B.</b> The following additional notice shall be placed on the application form for a key
9	employee or a primary management official before it is filled out by an applicant:
10	
11	1. A false statement on any part of your license application may be grounds for
12	denying a license or the suspension or revocation of a license. Also, you may be
13	punished by fine or imprisonment (U.S. Code, title 18, section 1001).
14	
15	
16	SECTION XVII. LICENSING OF EMPLOYEES
17	
18	A. The Department shall ensure that the policies and procedures set out in this Statute are
19	implemented with respect to key employees and primary management officials employed at any
20	Class II and/or Class III gaming enterprise.
21	
22	<b>B.</b> License Fees. The Department may charge a license fee, to be set by the Commission
23	and approved by the Tribal Council, to cover its expenses in investigating and licensing required
24	under this Statute.
25	
26	
27	SECTION XVIII. BACKGROUND INVESTIGATIONS
28	
29	A. The Department shall perform a background investigation for each primary management
30	official and key employee in its gaming operation. The investigation must be sufficient to allow
31	the Department to make an eligibility determination under Section 20 of this ordinance.
32	
33	<b>B.</b> The Department is responsible for conducting the background investigations of Page 17 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima

1 primary management officials and key employees. The background investigation shall 2 include a check of criminal history records information maintained by the Federal Bureau of 3 Investigations. 4 5 C. In conducting a background investigation, the Department shall keep confidential 6 the identity of persons who provided information during the course of the investigation, i.e. 7 former employers, personal references. 8 9 D. The Department may utilize the Tribe's Law Enforcement Department to take 10 fingerprints and conduct criminal history checks. The criminal history check shall include a 11 check of criminal history records information maintained by the Federal Bureau of 12 Investigation and any other services as are available and appropriate. 13 14 E. Fingerprints. The Department shall request fingerprints from each primary 15 management official and key employee. Fingerprints shall be taken by the Department or 16 Tribal Law Enforcement. Fingerprints will then be forwarded to the NIGC for processing 17 through the FBI and NIGC to determine the applicant's criminal history, if any. 18 19 20 **SECTION XIX.** PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING A BACKGROUND CHECK 21 ON APPLICANTS 22 23 A. The Department shall request from each primary management official and key 24 employee all of the following information: 25 26 1. Full name, other names used (oral or written), social security number, birth 27 date, place of birth, citizenship, gender and all languages (spoken and/or written); 28 29 2. Currently, and for the previous five (5) years; business and employment 30 positions held, ownership interests in those businesses, business and residential 31 addresses, and driver's license numbers; 32 33 3. The names and current addresses of at least three (3) personal references,

	LEG-243 1e-posted 03/30/19
1	including one (1) personal reference who was acquainted with the applicant during
2	each period of residence listed under paragraph (A)(2) of this section;
3	
4	<b>4.</b> Current business and residential telephone numbers, and all cell phone
5	numbers;
6	
7	5. A description of any existing and previous business relationships with other
8	tribes, including any ownership interests in those businesses;
9	
10	6. A description of any existing and previous business relationships with the
11	gaming industry generally, including ownership interests in those businesses;
12	
13	7. The name and address of any licensing or regulatory agency with which the
14	person has filed an application for a license or permit related to gaming, whether or
15	not such license or permit was granted;
16	
17	<b>8.</b> For each felony for which there is an ongoing prosecution or a conviction,
18	the charge, the name and address of the court involved, and the date of disposition,
19	if any;
20	
21	<b>9.</b> For each misdemeanor conviction or ongoing misdemeanor prosecution
22	(excluding minor traffic violations) within ten (10) years of the date of the
23	application, the name and address of the court involved and the date of disposition,
24	if any;
25	
26	10. For each criminal charge (excluding minor traffic charges), whether or not there
27	is a conviction, if such criminal charge is within ten (10) years of the date of the
28	application, and is not otherwise listed pursuant to paragraphs (A)(8) or (A)(9) of this
29	Section, the criminal charge, the name and address of the court involved, and the date
30	of disposition, if any;
31	
32	11. The name and address of any licensing or regulatory agency with which the
33	person has filed an application for an occupational license or permit, whether or not
	Page 19 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima

1		such 1	license or permit was granted;
2		12.	A photograph.
<i>3</i>		12.	A photograph;
5		13.	Any other information the Department deems relevant; and
6			
7		14.	Fingerprints obtained in accordance with procedures adopted by the Department.
8			
9	В.	When	a primary management official or key employee is employed by the Tribe, a
10	comp	lete app	plication file, containing all of the information listed in this section shall be
11	maint	ained.	
12			
13			
14	SECT	TION 2	XX. INVESTIGATIVE REPORTS
15			
16	<b>A.</b>	The I	Department shall create and maintain an investigative report for each background
17	invest	igation	of a primary management official or key employee.
18			
19	В.	Inves	tigative reports shall include all of the following information:
20			
21		1.	Steps taken in conducting the investigation;
22			
23		2.	Results obtained;
24			
25		3.	Conclusions reached; and
26		4	
27		4.	The basis for those conclusions.
28	•	L11	
29 20	C.	Eligit	pility Determination
30		1	Defense 1:
31		1.	Before a license is issued to a primary management official or key employee, the
32 33		-	rtment shall make a finding concerning the eligibility of that person for receiving a ng license by reviewing the applicant's prior activities, criminal record, if any, and
		5	

	ELG-243 10-posted 03/30	1)		
1	reputation, habits and associations. This finding will also incorporate the requi	rements of		
2	WOS 2019-003, Protection of Employees from Supervisors that have Committed a			
3	Crime of Domestic Violence or Sexual Harassment Statute, or as amended			
4				
5	2. If the Department, in applying the standards adopted in this Statute, de	termines		
6	that licensing the person poses a threat to the public interest or to the effective			
7	regulation of gaming, or creates or enhances the dangers of unsuitable, unfair	or illegal		
8	practices, methods and/or activities in the conduct of gaming, he or she shall n	ot		
9	license that person in a key employee or primary management official position	l <b>.</b>		
10				
11	3. Copies of the eligibility determination shall be included with the notice	of		
12	results that must be submitted to the NIGC before the licensing of a primary			
13	management official or key employee.			
14				
15	4. The Department will not consider records expunged or sealed by a Cou	ırt of		
16	law.			
17				
18				
19	SECTION XXI. NOTICE OF RESULTS OF BACKGROUND INVESTIGA	TIONS		
20				
21	A. Before issuing a license to a primary management official or key employee, th	e		
22	Department shall prepare a notice of results of the applicant's background investigation	on to		
23	submit to the NIGC.			
24				
25	<b>B.</b> The notice of results must be submitted to the NIGC no later than sixty (60) da	ıys after		
26	the applicant begins working for the Tribe.			
27				
28	C. The notice of results shall include the following information:			
29				
30	1. The applicant's name, date of birth and social security number;			
31				
32	2. The date on which the applicant began, or will begin, working as a	primary		
33	management official or key employee;			
	Page 21 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima			

1		
2	3.	A summary of the information presented in the investigative report,
3	inclu	ding:
4		
5		a. licenses that have previously been denied;
6		<b>b.</b> gaming licenses that have been revoked, even if subsequently reinstated;
7		<b>c.</b> every known criminal charge brought against the applicant within the
8		last ten (10) years of the date of the application; and
9		<b>d.</b> every felony offense of which the applicant has been convicted or
10		any ongoing prosecution; and
11		
12	4.	A copy of the eligibility determination made in accordance with this Section.
13		
14		
15	SECTION	XXII. GRANTING GAMING LICENSES
16		
17	<b>A.</b> All p	rimary management officials and key employees of the gaming operation must
18	have a gamin	ng license issued by the Department.
19		
20	<b>B.</b> The	Director is responsible for granting and issuing gaming licenses to primary
21	management	officials and key employees.
22		
23	C. The	Director may license a primary management official or key employee applicant
24	after submitt	ing a notice of results of the applicant's background investigation to the NIGC, as
25	required by t	his Section.
26		
27	<b>D.</b> The l	Director shall notify the NIGC of the issuance of a license to a primary
28	management	official or key employee within 30 days of issuance.
29		
30	E. The	Tribe shall not employ an individual in a primary management official or key
31	employee po	sition who does not have a license after ninety (90) days of beginning work at
32	the gaming of	pperation.
33		

1 F. The Director must reconsider a license application for a primary management official 2 or key employee if it receives a statement of itemized objections to issuing such a license 3 from the NIGC, and those objections are received within 30 days of the NIGC receiving a notice of results of the applicant's background investigation. 4 5 6 G. The Director shall take the NIGC's objections into account when reconsidering a 7 license application. 8 9 H. The Director will make the final decision whether to issue a license to an applicant for a 10 primary management official or key employee position. 11 12 I. If the Director has issued a license to a primary management official or key employee 13 before receiving the NIGC's statement of objections, notice and a hearing shall be provided to 14 the licensee, as required by this Statute. 15 16 17 SECTION XXIII. DENYING GAMING LICENSES 18 19 A. The Department shall not license a primary management official or key employee if 20 an authorized Director determines, in applying the standards in Section XX. for making a 21 license eligibility determination, that licensing the person: 22 23 1. Poses a threat to the public interest; 24 25 2. Poses a threat to the effective regulation of gaming; or 26 27 3. Creates or enhances the dangers of unsuitable, unfair or illegal practices, 28 methods and/or activities in the conduct of gaming. 29 30 B. When the Department does not issue a license to an applicant for a primary 31 management official or key employee position, or revokes a previously issued licenses after 32 reconsideration, it shall: 33 Page 23 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima\_\_\_\_

			22 2 10 To position 00,100,15
1	1.	.•	Notify the NIGC; and
2			
3	2.	10	Forward copies of its eligibility determination and notice of results of the
4	aj	pplica	nt's background investigation to the NIGC for inclusion in the Indian Gaming
5	In	ndivid	uals Record System.
6			
7			
8	SECTIO	)N XX	XIV. GAMING LICENSE SUSPENSIONS AND REVOCATIONS
9			
10	<b>A.</b> If	f, after	a license is issued to a primary management official or a key employee, the
11	Departme	ent rec	ceives notice from the NIGC that the primary management official or key
12	_		ot eligible for employment, the Department shall immediately suspend the license
13			e licensee with written notice of the suspension and proposed revocation; and
14	•		• • •
15	B. If	f the li	censee requests a hearing, the Commission shall notify the licensee of a time and
16	a place fo	or a he	earing on the proposed revocation of a license.
17	•		
18	C. Fo	ollowi	ing a revocation hearing, the Commission shall decide whether to revoke or
19	reinstate	the lic	cense at issue.
20			
21	<b>D.</b> T	he Co	ommission shall notify the NIGC of its decision to revoke or reinstate a
22	license w	vithin 1	forty-five (45) days of receiving notification from the NIGC that a primary
23	managen	nent of	fficial or key employee is not eligible for employment.
24	_		
25			
26	SECTIO	)N XX	XVV. RECORDS RETENTION
27			
28	The Depa	artmei	nt and Commission shall retain, for no less than three (3) years from the date
29	a primary	y mana	agement official or key employee is terminated from employment with the
30		•	owing documentation:
31	,		-
32	1.	.•	Application for licensing;
33			
	D 24 . 6	r20 C	oming Dogulatory Statute Society Viagima

		LLG-2+3 1c-posted 03/30/17
1	2.	Investigative Reports; and
2	2	
3	3.	Eligibility Determinations
4		
5	GE GELONI	WILL A LOTINGER FOR MENDODG
6 7	SECTION :	XVI. LICENSES FOR VENDORS
8	A. Lice	nse Required. Vendors of gaming related services or supplies of \$25,000 or more
9		st have a vendor license from the Department in order to transact business with the
10	_	ration. Contracts for professional legal, financing and accounting services are
11	0 0 1	om this section.
12		
13	B. Subr	nission of a Vendor License Application. In order to obtain a vendor license, the
14		st complete a vendor application and submit to background checks of itself and its
15		rincipals of a business include its officers, directors, management, owners, and
16	partners, no	n-institutional stockholders that either own ten percent (10%) or more of the stock
17	or are the te	n (10) largest stockholders, and the on-site supervisor or manager under the
18	agreement v	vith the Tribe, if applicable.
19		
20	C. Cont	ents of the Vendor License Application.
21		
22	1.	Applications for vendor licenses must include the following:
23		
24		a. Name of business, business address, business phone, federal tax ID
25		number (or SSN if a sole proprietorship), main office address if different from
26		business address, any other names the applicant has done business under, type of
27		service applicant will provide
28		
29		<b>b.</b> Whether the applicant is a partnership, corporation, limited liability
30		company, sole proprietorship, or other entity
31		
32		<b>c.</b> If the applicant is a corporation, the jurisdiction of incorporation, and the
33		qualification to do business in the jurisdiction of LTBB or the State of Michigan
	Page 25 of 30	Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima

1	
2	<b>d.</b> Trade name, other names ever used, names of any wholly owned
3	subsidiaries or other businesses owned by the vendor or its principals
4	
5	<b>e.</b> General description of the business and its activities
6	
7	<b>f.</b> Whether the applicant will be investing in or loaning money to the
8	gaming operation and, if so, how much
9	
10	g. A description of any existing and previous business relationships with the
11	gaming industry generally, including ownership interests in those businesses
12	
13	h. A description of any existing and previous business relationships with
14	Indian tribes, including ownership, financial, or management interests in non-
15	gaming activities
16	
17	i. Names, addresses, and phone numbers of three business references with
18	whom the company had regularly done business within the last five years
19	
20	<b>j.</b> The name and address of any licensing or regulatory agency with which
21	the business has filed an application for a license or permit related to gaming,
22	whether or not such license or permit was granted
23	
24	<b>k.</b> If the business has ever had a license revoked for any reason, the
25	circumstances involved
26	
27	<b>l.</b> A list of lawsuits to which the business has been a defendant, including
28	the name and address of the court involved, and the date and disposition if any
29	
30	<b>m.</b> List the business' funding sources and any liabilities of \$50,000 or more
31	
32	<b>n.</b> A list of the principals of the business, their social security numbers, date
33	of birth, addresses and telephone numbers, title, and percentage of ownership in

1			the company, and all criminal convictions in the past 10 years
2			
3			o. Any further information the Department deems relevant
4		2	The following statement shall be placed on the anglication forms for a worder and
5		2.	The following statement shall be placed on the application form for a vendor and
6		_	ncipals: "Inclusion of false or misleading information in the vendor application, or
7 8			tercation of the vendor application form, may be grounds for denial or revocation vendor license."
9		or the	vendor neerse.
10	D.	Vendo	or Background Investigation
11			
12	The D	Departme	ent may employ or otherwise engage a private investigator to complete an
13	invest	tigation o	of the vendor. This investigation shall contain, at a minimum, the following steps:
14			
15		1.	Verify of the business' incorporation status and qualification to do business in
16		the jur	isdiction where the gaming operation is located.
17			
18		2.	Conduct a check of the business' credit history.
19			
20		3.	Call each of the business references listed in the vendor application, and verify
21		gamin	g licenses.
22			
23		4.	Conduct an investigation of the principals of the business, including a criminal
24		history	check, a credit report, and interviews with the personal references listed
25			
26	<b>E.</b>	Vendo	r License Fee.
27			
28		_	ent may charge a license fee, to be set by the Commission and approved by the
29			l, to cover its expenses in investigating and licensing vendors of the gaming
30	opera	tion. LT	BB Citizens will not be charged a vendor license fee.
31		7D) 1	
32	F.		ackground investigator shall complete an investigative report covering each of the
33	-		the background investigation of the vendor and its principals.  Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima

	1
1	
2	
3	SECTION XVII. APPELLATE REVIEW
4	Any Anneals of Decylotomy decisions shall be decided by the Commission mismas being talen
5	Any Appeals of Regulatory decisions shall be decided by the Commission prior to being taken
6 7	to the Tribal Court.
8	
9	SECTION XXVIII. ANNUAL FEES
10	SECTION AAVIII. ANNUAL FEES
11	A. National Indian Gaming Commission Fees
12	
13	1. The LTBB Gaming Operation shall pay annual fees to the NIGC as established
14	by the NIGC and published in the Federal Register.
15	
16	2. The fee statement and fees shall be submitted to the NIGC no later than March
17	1 <sup>st</sup> and August 1 <sup>st</sup> of each calendar year.
18	
19	3. The statement shall identify an individual or individuals to be contacted in the
20	event that the NIGC needs further communication. Contact information shall be
21	included.
22	
23	4. The fees payable to the NIGC shall be determined in accordance with federal
24	regulations.
25	
26 27	CECTION VVIV MINIMUM INTERNAL CONTROL CTANDARDS
27 28	SECTION XXIX. MINIMUM INTERNAL CONTROL STANDARDS
20 29	A. Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians acknowledges its obligation to adopt and
30	implement Tribal Minimum Internal Control Standards (MICS) for the operation of its gaming
31	operation no less stringent than those found in the federal regulations. The Tribe's TMICS, or
32	as amended, shall be set out in separate regulations to be reviewed by the Commission and
33	approved by the Tribal Council.
-	AKK TANA TO TELEBOOK DECEMBER.

1		
2	<b>B.</b> Violations of LTBB Tribal Minimum Internal Control Standards shall be reported to	
3	gaming operation management.	
4		
5	C. Gaming Operation Management shall be required to respond to TMICS violations	
6	stating corrective measures to be taken to avoid recurrence of the violation. Such management	
7	responses shall be included in the Final Internal Audit report that will be delivered to Tribal	
8	Chair, Tribal Council, LTBB Gaming Regulatory Commission, Gaming Authority and Casino	
9	Management.	
10		
11		
12	SECTION XXX. LICENSE LOCATIONS	
13		
14	The Department shall issue a separate license to each place, facility, or location on Indian lands	;
15	where class II and/or class III gaming is conducted under this Statute.	
16		
17		
18	SECTION XXXI. AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS	
19		
20	The Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians hereby designates LTBB Tribal Chair as ager	ıt
21	for service of process, who may be contacted at:	
22	7500 Odawa Circle	
23	Harbor Springs, MI 49740	
24		
25	SECTION VVVII MANACEMENT CONTRACTS DROUBLED	
26	SECTION XXXII. MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS PROHIBITED	
27	Management contracts for management of LTPP gaming enterprises are prohibited by this	
28	Management contracts for management of LTBB gaming enterprises are prohibited by this Statute, even if such contracts would otherwise be allowable under the IGRA.	
29 30	Statute, even il such contracts would otherwise be allowable under the IGRA.	
31		
32	SECTION XXXIII. REGULATIONS	
33	DECION MARIN REGULATION	
,,	Page 29 of 30 Gaming Regulatory Statute Secretary Kiogima	

1	Any regulations promulgated or required in accordance with this Statute shall be submitted to
2	Tribal Council for approval.
3	
4	
5	SECTION XXXIV. SAVINGS CLAUSE
6	
7	In the event that any phrase, provision, part, paragraph, subsection or section of this Statute is
8	found by a court of competent jurisdiction to violate the Constitution, or laws of the Little
9	Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians, such phrase, provision, part, paragraph, subsection or
10	section shall be considered to stand alone and to be deleted from this Statute, the entirety of the
11	balance of the Statute to remain in full and binding force and effect.
12	
13	
14	SECTION XXXV. EFFECTIVE DATE
15	
16	This Statute takes effect upon approval of the Chairman of the National Indian Gaming
17	Commission, or when considered approved by operation of applicable Federal law and/or
18	regulation.
19	
20	
21	CERTIFICATION
22	
23	